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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Juniper Green Three Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Juniper Green Three Private Limited ('the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(‘Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information
comprises the information included in the Director's report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
hased on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information. we are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors.
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the malters stated in section 134(3) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whale
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatemnent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the ecanomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We
are also;

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of nat
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal contral;

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls,

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to-theielated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, tglmodify owr pinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
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evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by the
predecessor auditors, 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, wha have expressed an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements vide their audit report dated 6 September 2023

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are
not applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section
2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable,

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {'the Order) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Actwe give in the Annexure A a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

Eurther to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
staternents;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the mallers stated in paragraph
14(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended).

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

g} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

fy The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 14(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 14(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such contrals, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the@xg ons given to us:
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iv. (a)

(b)

(c)

Wi

The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024;

The Company did not have any long-term confracts including derivative confracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024,

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 45(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 45(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriata in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024,

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its
hooks of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software
except that, the audit trail feature was not enabled at database level for accounting software
to log any direct data changes, as described in note 44 to the financial statements. Further,
during the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with in respect of the accounting software where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

3mm é:?

Partner

Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFASDB388 ™~

Flace: Gurugram
Date: 16 September 2024
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Three Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we report that:

(i) (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-
progress and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred
to as 'the Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment, capital work-in-progress and relevant details of right of use asset under which
the assets are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. In accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment and
relevant details of right of use asset were verified during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee), disclosed in Note 3(i) to the financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company does not hald any inventory, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iiya) of
the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees by
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iijy(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act. As the
Company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule VI of the Act,
provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In
our opinion, and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments,
as applicahle.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning__pf_s!e;pt[ons 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Three Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

(v)

(viij(a)

(b

Lty

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b

T
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of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete,

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statufory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that there are no
statutory dues referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no transactions
were surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books
of accounts.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given fo us, we report that the Company does not
have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause Hix)(e)
and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year,
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Three Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given ta us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made o
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xiiy  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with
section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the financial statements etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24,
Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules
2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committes
under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as
required under the provisions of section 138 of the Act.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
182 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi){a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xviij The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information
and explanations given to us by the management and the response received by us pursuant to
our communication with the outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, objections or concerns
raised by the outgoing auditors,

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based gﬁi.ﬁ'l.ir" ex "n}i_[a\e‘:tion of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Three Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

()

(xxi)

nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as
and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the
criteria as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and accordingly, reporting under clause
3{xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076MN/N500013

i'znrbm

Deepak Mittal [=
Partner [ *

Membership No.: 503843 \
UDIN: 24503843BKFASD8398

Place: Gurugram
Date; 16 September 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Juniper
Green Three Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Juniper Green Three Private Limited (‘the
Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial cantrols with reference
io financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI) prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference ta
financial statements, and the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Mote require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
ar error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statemeants,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonahble detail,
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Juniper
Green Three Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2}
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

ACRBNDIGE

Deepak Mittal k

Partner
Membership Mo.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFASDERGE

Place: Gurugram
Date: 16 September 2024
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JUNIPER GREEN THREE PRIVATE LIMEITEDR
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Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2024

(A mnounts are stated in 7 lakhs, unless olfienwize stated)

A al As at
Dasdiiainry st March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
Man-current asscis
Property, plant and equipment 3 93,203.12 L7 08505
Riphil-of-use asscts 3 5,074,45 519408
Capital work-in-propress k] 46,28 -
Finaneial assets
Securily deposit L] 18,83 17.07
Trade receivables 10 324 3124
Diefermed tax pssets (nel) 5 423 4% by, it
Mon ewrrend Bix asscls (net) ] 2217 59.25
Oitlser ivon current assets 7 .26
Sub tofal (A) 98 814,55 10245521
Current pasels
Financial assels
Securily deposil 3 - n.sd
havestments o WHLET 19616
Trade reccivables 10 1,153,580 L 080, 45
Cash and cash equivabairs n 147.11 118847
Oither baank balances 12 156,04 197800
Oither current financial nsssls 13 1A% B3 2E
Cher current asseds 14 193.57 24500
Sub total {13} LR03.01 4,432.47
TOTAL ASSETS (A+1) 101623 46 LOTART.GR
FQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
iy share capital I5 13,1300 13,130.00
Onher cquity 16 13,834,012} (2, 107.469)
Sub total (T} 9,195, 88 11,022.31
mun-currenl llabllitics
Financial lubifities
Lo inas 17 #1,972.62 R 9032
Lease liabilitics i 4,624 (3 4.348.72
Frovisions 13 54.64 81,70
Sub total (1v) R 65129 B0.400.74
Current liabilitics
Finoneial labilities
Lnrmowings 1% 3,152.2% A,512.54
Leasc lighilities ki) = 17.46
Trade payables 20
Total oelstanding ducs of micro enferprises and small cntcrprises 1447 .65
Total owtssanding dues of ereditors other ian micre enterprises and small enterprises 146,65 136.05
Other current finameial Eabilities 21 211871 2,156,107
Oither current liakilitics ) 125,56 102
Provisions 23 KAl 1341
Sul total (E} 5,676,219 663
TOTAL BQUITY AND LIABILITIES (C+I0HIE) 101,623,446 a Ig Eg ?£§
2

Summary of material accounting policy information

‘The peesnpanying notes are an integral parl of the fnancial statements,
As per vur repor of even dale

Far Walker Chandiok & Co. LLF

Charlered Aceounlands
Finm Kegisiration Moo 00LOT6RMI0001 3

Deepak Midtal

Partner

Membership Mo, 503843
Place: Gurugram

Date: Seplember 16, 2024

Far and on behalf of the Board of Dirceiors of
Juniper Green Three Private Limited

Enche

Warcsh Mansukhani
IMirector

D OGS0 RO
Place: Gurugmam

Priya IE]
Company Secrctary
M. Mo, - ABET4T

Flice: Giurugram

Date: September 16, 2024

Farag Agrawal

Dircetor

DIM: 02463717
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JUNIPER GREEN THREE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40106DLI0ZOPTCI60860

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
{ All amounts ave stated in 2 lakhs, unless otherwisc stated)

Particilsie Notes For the vear ended For the year ended
' March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
[ncome
Fevenue [rom operations 24 11,082.74 10,585.42
Oiher income 25 152,02 336,69
Total income 11,264.76 11,122.11
Expenses
Employes benelils expense 6 30028 026.03
Finance cusl 7 7.926.60 E327.67
Diepreciation and amortization expense 28 4,295,601 4,175,69
Other expenses i §24.99 048.33
Total expenses 13,347.48 14,378.62
Loss belore tax (2,082.72) (3,256.51)
Tax expense ! {eredit)
Current 1ax expensc 30 - =
Dreterred tax credil (356,74} (381.79)
Total tax expense ! (credit) (356.74) (381.79)
Lass afler tax (A) (1.725.98) (2.874.72)
Other comprehensive income / {loss)
Ttems that will not be reclassified o profit and loss in subsequent yoars
Re-measurement gaindloss) on defined benelit plans 7.06 (2.07)
Tax unpact (1.21) 1.56
Tterms that will be reclussiled to profit or loss in subsequent years
Recognition af gainsi{losses) in fair value ol hedging instrument (ned) (760 7.60
Taux nmpact 1.3 (1.30)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (B) (0.45) (1.21)
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (A+B) {1,726.43) {2.875.9%)
Lass per equity share: [Nominal value of share : ¥ 10] i
(1) Basic (%) (1313 (2213
(2] Driluted () (1.31 (2.21)
Summary of material accounting policy information 2

The accompanying nules are an integral part of the linancial statemenis.
A per our report of cven date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
(Charfered Accountants
Firm Reaistration Mao.: fH'rlD'IﬁN:’NﬁLIUUI'#

hr"

Deepak Mittal
Partner ,
Membership Mo, 503843 \ e
Place; Gurugram

[Date: September 10, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Direetors of
Juniper Green Thres Private Limited

& Gncdr

Maresh Mansulhani
Direotor

DIN: DAGS04E0
Place: Gurugram

Parayg Agrawal

[yireetor
[M: 02463717
Place: Gurgram

el i i
P
Priya Shayma A/
Conpany Secretary [ &

M. Mo, - A2 147
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JUNIPER GREEN THREE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40106DL2020PTCI60860

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al smounts are stated in ¥ Jakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Particulars

For the ¥ear Ended

For the Year Ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A Operating activitics
(Loss) hefore tax (2,082.72) (3,256.51)
Adjustment to reconcile (loss) before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 420561 4.175.64
Tmterest income on fixed deposil (108.69) (AE0.68)
Interest income un security deposit (0.73) {0.51)
Interest income on income tax refund (2.33) (1.8
Gain on termination of leass (4.5%)
Net gain on investment in mutual fund measured at fair value theough profit and loss (0.ET) (1.18)
Profit on redemption of mutual fund {49.15) (1083}
Interest on loan from financial instilution 634129 5,308.08
Tmterest on buyers eredil 56,89 285,90
[mterest on lean from holding company 3625 .65
Interes| expense on lease labilities IHO.SH 352.84
Tnlerest expense on decommissioning liabilitics 3.51 3.22
Interest on OCDks From holding company 1.072,1% 1,019,849
Other borrowing cost (bank guaraniee, hedging cost and other charges) 29 80 1.357.00
0.973.13 875187
Working capital adjustments:
Dreerease in olher financial asscis 6R.16 24 45
(Increase) in Trade Reccivables (112.81) (970.64)
Decrease in other assels 47.64 228,55
(Deerease) in provisions (48.31) (5741
Increase in trade payables %379 136.50
{Decrease) in other current linancial liabilities 9,52 34.12)
IncreascA Decrease) in other current labililies 97 84 (152.47)
10,118.96 7.926.74
Income tax (paid) / refund (net) 37.08 (14.05)
Met eash Mow generated from operating activities (A) 1,156.04 7.912.60
B Investing activitics
Puerchase of property plant and equipment including capital work in progress (1.236.56) (8.092.04)
Interest reccived 115,61 483 .26
Investmenl in mutval fund (net) (504.69) (38417
Proceeds from bank deposils (net) 1,621.92 2,122.00
Met cash Mow used in investing activities (B) (3.7 (5.870.95)
C Financing activitics
Praceeds of loan from linancial institution - 58.482.00
Repayvment of Tean to financial instilution (3.245.000) {1, 499.85)
Procesds of loan from holding company 129,00 LR
Repayment of loan from holding company = (300,00
Repayment of buyers credit (1L 310.R9) (52,230.6%)
Payment of lease liabilitics {223.04) (358.58)
Finmmece cost paid {6,542.85) (5,938,96)
Met cash Mlow used in finaneing activities (<) {11,193.68) (1,197.08)
Met increase  (decrense) in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) (1,041.36) Y4406
Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the year 1,188.47 343 81
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year® 147,11 1,188.47
*Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 11}
Balances with schedule banks:
- On current accounts 147.11 77.46
- Cheques £ DL in hard - 18.15
Todal cash and cash equivalents 147.11 1,188.47




JUNIPER GGREEN THREE FRIVATE LIMITELD

CIN-U40106DLZ02Z0PTCI60860

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{ All amounts are stated in % lakhs, unless othorwise sialed)

Motes:
There are no non cash movements in financing & investing activities except those disclosed above and refer note 12.

Summary of material accounting policy inlormation {refer note 2)

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements

A per our report of even date

For Wallker Chandiok & Co. LLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors of

Charlered Accountants Juniper Green Three Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 0010T6M/M 500013

Deepak Tthtal

Maresh Mansukhani Parag Agrawal
Partner Dircetor Dhiregtor
Membership Mo, 503843 DIN: 06990480 DTN (12463717
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurngram Place: Gurugram
Date: Scptember 16, 2024 @/
Priya Sharma ey T4

Company Secretary

M. Mo, - AG2147

Flave: Gurugram

Date: September 10, 2024




JUNIPER GREEN THREE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-UAN 06D T2NZ0PTCI60E60

Statement of change In cquity for the year ended March 31, 2024

(A esuts & stated in 3 lakls, enless otherwise shilecl)

(a) Equity Share Capltal

Farticulars MNumber of sharc ¥ in lakhs
At April 01, 2022 12,12,20,000 12,1220
Issue of share capital during the year 1.,00,50.000 1,0085.00
Balance at March 31, 2023 13, 13,00,0040 13,130,010
Isswe of share capital during the vear - -
Balance ni March 31, 2024 13,13,00,000 13,130.00
() Other cyuity
Other
Heserves and .
Surplus Comprehensive | Kguity Component of
Particulnrs Ineconme compound financial Total

Helnined Cash Mow hedge instrument

Earnlngs FESCUVE
At April 01, 2032 (602.89) - 1,314.71 TI1.82
Lass for the year (2.874.72) - 12,874.72)
Adjusiment on account of equily componcnt gz per lnd AS 109 n - 56,42 56.42
Addition in Hedyring reserve, net of tax (refer note - 16} - .30 - a.n
(Hher coanprelensive income for the year, nel of tax [7.51) - - (1.51)
Balunee at March 31, 2023 (3,485.12) .30 137113 (2, 10769
Lozs for the year {1.725.98) - - {1.725.98)
Drcbetion in edging rescrve, ned of tax (refer node - 16) {630} - {6.30)
Other conmgrehensive income for e year, net of tax 5,85 - - E4s
Balanee at March 31, 2024 [5.205.25) - 1,371.13 (3.834.12)

Swmmary of material avcounting policy information (refer note 2)

The accompanying nules are an integral parl of the frarcial salenents

A pee oar repart of even date

Fur Walker Chandiok & Co, LLI
Chartered Accountimis
Firm Fegisiration Mo (01076HM50001 3

Deepak .'i'liltl

irlniize
Membership Mo, 503843
Place: Giurugriun

i September 16, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tumiper Cireen Theee Private Limited

Forehh—

Marcsh Muansukhanl
L¥ireutor

300 DE0R ED
Flape: Gurugram

Company Secrelary
M. Mo, - As2147
Place; Gurwgram

[yate: September 16, M2

Parvag Agrawal
Drirector
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Juniper Green Three Private Limited
CIN-U40106D1L2020PTCI60860

Notes to finuncial siatements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1.

2.1

2.2

Corporate information

Juniper Green Three Private Limited is a private Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, The Company is subsidiary of Juniper Green Lnergy Private Limited. The registered office of
the Company is located al F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza 1, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector 10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075,

The Company was incorporated on January 27, 2020. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of selling up,
operating, generalion, supply and sale of power in the field of renewable energy. The Company has commissioned 190
MW Solar Power Project in the stale of Gujarat (“Project™) and electricity gencrated [rom it is sold to Gujarat Urja Vikas
Migam Limited.

The financial statements were authorized for issuc in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated
September 16, 2024,

Basis of Preparation and Material accounting policy information

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with the section 133 of the Companies Acl,
2013 (as amended from time Lo time) and presentation requirements of Division 11 of Schedule 11T to the Companies Act,
2013, {Ind AS compliant Schedule I1I), as applicable to the financial slatements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial slalements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for derivative financial instruments and certain financial asscts and financial liabilities which have been measured at fair
value or revalued amount as cxplained in relevant accounting policies,

The financial slalements are presented in Rupees in lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

Material accounting policy information

a) Tlse of Estimates
The preparation of [inancial statements in conformity with Tnd AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenscs, assels and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels or liabilities in future periods.

b) Al assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company s normal operating cyele
ol 12 months which is based on the nature of business of the Company and other criteria set out in Schedule 11l to the
Companies Act, 2013, Current assets do not include clements which are not expected Lo be realized within 12 months
and Current liahilitics do not include item which are due after 12 manths, the period of 12 months being reckoned
from the reporling date.

¢) Amended Acconnting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations cffective during the year

i)  Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments (o Ind A5 §
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting policics and

the correclion of errors. Tt has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates,

The amendments had no impact on the Company., G
L@\
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Juniper Green Three Private Limited
CIN-U40106DL20ZUP TCIG0E00
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

d)

ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1
The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requirement for entilies 1o disclose their ‘significant” accounting policics with a requirement to disclose their *material®
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concepl of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s linancial statements.

iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary diflerences such as leases.

The amendments had no impact on the Company.
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred Lo the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to e entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer,

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other incentives, if
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts collected form customers.

- Sale of power: The Company’s revenue from sale of electricity generally includes one performance obligation. The
revenue from supply of power is recognized over time when eleetricity is transferred to the customer i.e. on the supply
of units generated from the plant to the grid. The revenue is recognized at the agreed tarifl rale as per the terms of the
Power Purchase Agreements ("PPA") entered into with the customer.

Revenue from operations on account of change m law events in terms of PPA’s with customers is accounted for based
an the orders/ reports of respective regulatory authorities and management’s best estimates wherever required.

- Sale of Verified Emission Reductions (VER): Revenue from sale of VER is recognised when following conditions
have been satisfied:

i. The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the VER have been passed on to the buyer;

ii. ‘The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

iii. Tt is probable thal the economic hencfits associated with the sale of VER will flow to the entity; and
iv. The cost incurred or to be incurred in respect to sale of VER can be measured rcliably.

- Contraci assets: A contract asset is the right to comsideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a cuslomer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized [or the earned consideration that is conditional.

- Trade receivables: A receivable represents the company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional

(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

¢) Properiy Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Froperty, plant and equipment is stated at cost, and subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment other than
frechold land are measurcd at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cosl
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the




Juniper Green Three Private Limited
CIN-U40L06DL2020PTCI60860

MNotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. Subsequent costs arc included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that [uture economic benelits associated with the itemn will flow to the Company. All other repair and
maintcnance cosls are recognized in stalement of profit or loss as incurred,

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a parl of an item of properly, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
of property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future cconomic benefits embodied within the part will low o
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getling derecogniscd.
The cost for day-lo-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as and
when incurred,

Capital work-in-progress/ Assets under construction

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projeets under development and is stated at
cost, net of accumulaled impairment loss, il any. Cost includes land, related acquisition expenses, development!
construction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

Depreciation

Depreciation on properiy, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of uscful lives
(as sct-out below) prescribed in Schedule L to the Act:

Usetul life
Assets calegory .
{in years)
Plant and Equipment * - 25
Office equipment 5
| Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles . 8
Computers (including servers) 3-6
Lease hold improvements Crwver the period of lease term

* The useful life of plant & equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule IT of the
Companies Act, 2013, The Company, based on technical assessment made by internal expert, has eslimated the uscful lile
of solar power project as 25 years and believes that it reflects [air approximation of the period over which the asset will
generale economic benefit and is likely to be used.

The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the
principal assct. The assets residual values and useful lives arc reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there are
indicators for impairment and adjusted prospectively.

Derecognition

An ilem of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derceognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derceognition of the
assel (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel) is included in
the income statement when the assel is derecognized. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at cach financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriale.

f)  Leases

The Company assesscs at conlract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the conlract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.




Juniper Green Three Private Limited

CIN-T/40106DL2020P TC360860

MNotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets, The company recognizes lease liabilitics to make lease payments and right-ol-use assefs representing
the right to use the underlying assets,

1) Right-ol-nse assets

The company recognizes right-of-usc assets al the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available lor use). Right-of-usc asscls are measurad at cost, less any accumulated depreeiation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilitics. The cost of right-of-use asscts includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-ol-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated uselul lives of the assets arc follows:

+  Leaschold Land 29.5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company al the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase oplion, depreciation is caleulated using the estimated uselul life of the asset, The nght-ol-use assets are also
subject to impairment.

i} Lease labilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of leasc
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in subslance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments thal depend on an mdex or a rale, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
aption reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminale,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement dale because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilitics is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilitics is remeasured if there is a modilication, a change m the lease lerm, a
change in the lease payments (&.g., changes to luture payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option Lo purchase the underlying assel.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

'The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its shori-lerm leases of certain plant & machinery,
vehicle ete. (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less [rom the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assels recognition cxemplion lo leases of office cquipment that
are considered to be low value, Lease payments on short-term leascs and leases of low value assets are recognized as
cxpense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs arc capitalized as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the gequisition,
construction or production of that asset. Capitalization of borrowing cosls commences when the activilies to prepare the
assel for its intended usc or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs
are capitalized until the assets are substantially completed for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs arc
expensed in the period they oceur. Borrowing cost includes inlerest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in conneclion
with the arrangement of borrowings, other cosls thal an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
cxchange differences arising from loreign currency horrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing cost.

h)  Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract thal gives rise to a financial assel of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument ol another entity.
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CIN-U40106DL20ZOP TCI6NE60

Notes (o financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial Asscts

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial asscts are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs thal are attributahle to the acquisition of the [inancial asset. Purchases or sales of
financial asscts thal require delivery of assets within a time [rame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date thal the Company commils to purchase or
sell the assct.

Subsequent Measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, [inancial assets are classified in four calegories:

e Debt mstruments al amortized cosl

s  Dchi instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and cquily instraments at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss (FVIPL)
e  Equity instruments, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debi instruments at amortized cost

A *debl instrument® is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are mel:
a)  The assel is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and

h)  Contractual terms of the assel give rise on specilied dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (FTR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ETR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Prolit and Loss. The
catcgory applies to the Company s trade reccivables, unbilled revenue, other bank balances, security deposits i,

Debt instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCT)
A ‘debt instrument? is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:
a)  The ohjective of the busincss model is achicved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial

assets, and
b)  The asset’s contractual cash (lows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as at cach reporting date al [air
valuc. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Company recognizes
interest income, impairment losses & reversals in the statement of Profit and Loss. On derccognition of the assel,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassificd from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss,

Interest eamned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method,

Debt instrument at fair value through profit and loss (FVTFL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for cate porizalion
as at amortized cost or as FVTOC), is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designale a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCT
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or climinales a measurement or
rccognition inconsistency (relerred to as ‘accounting mismateh’).

Diebt instrument included within FVT'PL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the stalement
ol profit and loss.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a linancial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e. removed [rom the Company's balanee sheet) when:

a)  The contractual rights lo receive cash flows from the assel have expired, or

b}  The Company has transferred ils contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an
obligation o pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’
arrangement; and Either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, bul has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights 10 receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has ncither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assel, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognize the assel o the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred assct and the associated liability arc measured on a
hasis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing invelvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the assel and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on the following linancial assets and credit risk exposure:
e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances
Financial assct that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCT
Trade receivables or any contractual right (o receive cash or another {inancial asset that result from (ransactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Tnd AS 18

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company Lo (rack changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs al each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assels and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has
been a significanl increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If eredit risk has not increased signilicantly, twelve
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, il credit risk has increased signilicantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such thal there is no longer a signilicant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts Lo recognizing impairment loss allowance based on
a lwelve month ECL,

Lifelime LCL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month FCT. is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results [rom default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows thal the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating
the cash (lows, an entity is required to consider:

s All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entily is required to usc the remaining contractual term of the financial
inslrument

e  Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements thal are integral to the contractual lerms.
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As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision malrix 10 determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio ol its
trade reccivables, The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recogmsed as income’ expensc in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of prolit and loss,
The balance sheel presentation for financial instruments is described below:

For financial asscts measured at amortiscd cost: ECL is presented as an allowance i.e. as an integral part ol the measurement
of thuse assels in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the nel carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria,
the Company docs not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increasc in credil risk and impairment loss, the Company combines [inancial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases
in credit risk to be identificd on a lmely basis.

Non derivative financial linbilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilitics are classified, at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
horrowings, payables. All financial liabililies are recognized initially al fair value and, in the case ol loans and borrowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans
and borrowings.

Subsequent measuremend
The measurement of financial liabililies depends on their classilication, as described below:

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon inilial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilitics are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This calegory also includes denivative linancial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classilied as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Guins or losses on liahilitics held lor trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such al the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 arc satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
valuc gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCT. These gains/ losses are not subscquently
iransferred to P&L. However, the Company may transler the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair valuc of such liabilily are recogniscd in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses arc recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities arc derecognized as well as through the EIR
amaortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking inlo account any discount or premium on acquisition and lees or costs that are an
integral part of the ETR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liabilily is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
cxisting financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liahility are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liahility and the recognition of a new liability. The diffcrence in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of profit or loss.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Company uses derivative [inancial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge ils foreign currcney risks,

Such derivative [inancial instruments are initially recognised at fair valuc on the date on which a derivalive contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as [inancial assets when Lhe fair valuc
is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 arc recognised in the statement of profit
and loss,

Any gains or losses arising {rom changes in the fair value of derivatives are laken directly to profil or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified lo profit or loss when the hedge
item affects profit or loss or trealed as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-linancial assct or non-financial liability

For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Company has classificd its hedges into cash flow hedge i.e. hedging the exposure
to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recogniscd assel or liability or a
highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commilment. At the inception of
a hedge rclationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company
wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being hedged,
and how the Company will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectivencss requirements (including
the analysis of sources of hedge meilectiveness and how the hedge ratio 1s determined). A hedging relationship qualifies
for hedge accounting if il meets all of the following effectiveness requirements:

+ There is ‘an economic relationship® between the hedged item and the hedging instrument.

« 'The effect of credil risk does not *dominate the valuc changes® that result from that economic relationship.

+ The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting [rom the quantity of the hedged itcm that the
Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Company actually vses to hedge that quantity
of hedged item.

[ledges that meel the strict criteria for hedpe accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Cash Flow Hedges: The cffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging mstrument is recognised in OCL in the effective
portion of cash flow hedges, while any ineffective portion is recopnised immediately in the statement ol profit and loss.
The effective portion of cash flow hedges is adjusted to the lower of the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument
and the cumulative change in [air value of the hedged item,

The Company uscs forward currency contracts as hedges of its exposure to foreign currency risk in forccast transactions.
The ineffective portion relating to foreign currency contracts is recognised in statement of prolit & loss. The Company
designates only the spot clement of a forward contract as a hedging instrument. ‘The changes in [air value of the forward
element of the derivalive are recognized in other comprehensive income and are accumulated in “Cash Flow Hedge
Reserve’,

The difference between forward and spol element at the date of designation of the hedging instrument is amortised over
the period of the hedge. Hence, in each reporling period, the amortisation amount shall be reclassified from the separate
component of equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. The accumulated balance in cash flow hedge reserve
is transferred Lo property, plant and equipment on sctllement. However, if hedge accounting is discontinued for the hedging
relationship that includes the changes in forward clement of the hedging instrument, the net amount (i.e. inclhuding
cumnulative amortisation) that has been accumulated in the scparate component of equity shall be immediately reclassified
into statement of profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment,
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Reelassification of Financial instroments
The Company determines classification of financial asscts and liabililies en initial recognition. Alter initial recognition,
no reclassifications are made for financial asscts and [inancial liabilities.

Oflsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assels and financial liabilitics are oflset and the net amount is reporied in the balance sheet if there is a currently

enforceable legal right to offsel the recognized amounts and there is an intention to scttle on a net basis, to realize the assels
and settle the Habilities simultaneously,

i) Foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (TNR or %) which is also the functional and reporting currency of
the Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transaclions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the lunctional
currency and the foreign currency al the date of the transaction.

l'oreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date arc converted to functional currency using the
closing rale. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cosl are reported using
the exchange rate at the date ol the Lransactions,

Exchange differences arising on monelary items on scttlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates differcnt from
those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they
arise.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates al the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monctary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on ilems whose
fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized m other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respeetively).

i) Taxes

Current Income (axes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authoritics. The lax rates and tax laws used lo compute the amount are those that are enacted or substanlively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in cquity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCT or directly in equily. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the lax returns with respect to siluations
in which applicable tax regulations arc subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bascs of assels and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilitics are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, excepl:

s When the deferred tax lability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the lime of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

«  Inrespect of taxable lemporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and mteresls in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary difTerences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable [ulure,

Deferred tax assets are recognised [or all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Delerred tax assets are recognised (o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
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against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be ulilised, except:

s  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the aceounting profit nor taxable profit or loss,

s In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, delerred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foresecable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary dillerences can
be utiliscd

The carrying amount of deferred tax assels is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or parl of the deferred tax assct to be utilised,
Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
prohahle that future taxable profits will allow the delerred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax asscts and liabililies are measurcd at the tax rales that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rales (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacled at the
reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax ilems are recognised in correlation Lo the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity.

k) Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident lund
scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. 1f the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable (o the scheme is recognized
as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the conlribution due for
services recoived belore the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an assel Lo the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, [or example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme, The costs of providing benefits under the scheme
are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-cnd using the projected unit credit method, The actuarial
valuation is carricd out for the plan using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of acluarial gains and losses, the effect of the assct ceiling, excluding amounts included m
net interest on the net defined henefit liability and the return on plan assels (excluding amounts included in nel interest on
the net defined henefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained camings through OCT in the period in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profil or loss on the earlier of
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
s  The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

et interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognizes the following changes in the net defined henefit obligation as an expense in the statement ol profit and loss:

e Scrvice costs comprising current service cosls, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

o  Net interest cxpense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as shori-term employee benelil.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of
the nnused entitlement that has aceumulated at the reporting date.
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The Company treats accumulated leave expected Lo be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
henefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does nol have an unconditional right to defer its scttlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a perind beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non-current liability,

1)  Earnings per share

Basic carnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss [or the period attributable to equity sharcholders
{after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly
paid equity sharcs arc treated as a (raclion of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period arc adjusted for the elfects of all
dilutive potential cquity shares.

m) Provisions

General

TProvisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past evenl, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, When the Company expecls some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as 1 separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virlually certain. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

II the effect of the time value of moncy is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-lax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of lime is recognized as a finance cosl.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate, Il is no
longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Decommissioning liability

The Company rccords a provision lor decommissioning costs of its solar power plants. Decommissioning costs are
provided at the present value of cxpected cosls Lo settle the oblipation using estimated cash llows and are recognised as
part of the cost of the particular assel. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability, The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement
ol profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the eslimated future costs or in the discount rale applied are added to or deducted from the cost of
Lhe asset.

n) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 1[ any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the
assel’s recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amounl is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its valuc in use and is determined for an individual assct, unless the assel does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an assel
or cash-generaling unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is wrillen down to its
recoverable amount.
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Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profil & loss, except for assets that are previously revalued where
the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to delermine
the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. Il that is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannol exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recogniscd previously. Such reversal is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case Lhe reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase.

o) Contingent Assets/linbilities

Contingent asscts arc not recognized, However, when realization of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no
longer a conlingent asset, and is recognized as an asset,

A conlingent liability is a possible obligation that arises [rom past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
gccurrence or non-oceurrence of onc or more uncertain future cvents beyond the control of the Company or a presenl
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required Lo seltle the
obligation. A contingent lability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannol be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably, The Company does nol recognize a contingent liability but discloses ils existence
in the financial statements.

p)  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheel comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposils, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

q) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivates at Fair value al each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markel
participants at the measurement date. ‘The fair valuc measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction o sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place cither:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous markel {or the asset or hability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liabilily is measured using the assumptions that market participants would usc when pricing
the asset or liahility, assuming that market participants act in their cconomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset lakes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic
henefits by using the assel in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the assel.
in ils highest and best usc.

The Company uses valuation techniques thal are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available Lo measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs.

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial slatements are categorized within the
[air value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for idenlical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant lo the fair value measurement is directly
ot indirectly obscrvable

Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable,
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At each reporting date, the managemenl of the Company analysis the movements in the values of the assets and liabilities
which are required to be measured or reassessed as per the accounting policies of the Company,

For asscts and Habilities that are recognized in the financial statements on & recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (bascd on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of cach reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilitics on the basis ol the
nature, characteristics and risks of the assel or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy as explained above, This
notc summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

¥}  Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounling Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. As at 31st March 2024, MCA has not notificd any new
standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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Turliculars April 01, 2023 Adldirinns Fland & Blarch 31, 2024
Alachinery
Dalance of Plant cosstructivu vost 4151 LIS 626
Tatal - 151 20025 46,20
Capitalized to
Farticulars Apral i1, 2022 Addltlons Plumt & March 31, 2023
tachinery

Befance ol Flast conslmetion cnst - 47117 171017 -
| Tntal ; . 4,7111.17 471117 .
CWIF Ageing Schedule
Asal 3 March 2024
Faricubars Amaunt in CWIF for o period of

Leess dlsan 1 year 1-2 vears 1.3 yenrs Mlore tban 3 Toral

years

Trojecls in progriss 4 - - dr. 26
Projects temporarily suspended J - - -
Tulal 4. 2h = - - 4626
sl 31 March 2003 —
Porticalars Avyiniiisd Te CWIF for & peried nf

Lexs than | year 1-2 yeurs -3 years Mare than 3 Totul

- . yiars
Frojecis in progress - - -
Frofeeis reampararily suspended - - = - =
Tatal = - = = -
(1] Right-of-use axsels i
Parficilars 1easehold Guilding un kease Tital
Eand

Opening as sl Apail 01, 2023 | 1763 B inde | 420237
Additioas during the puricd 6. 70 - &40, 70
Diigposals during the year [32,58) - (32,58}
Depreciativa lir i peiod [206.35) [15460] (221.81}
lal as al March A1, 2013 £ 1TLAS 4.3 500,68
Aalilulices diring ihe vear 121,82 - 123.H2
Dhispusals during e yea [ 24.03) 124.03)
Idepreciaticn for the year (220035 - {2200}
Ginlunive s al March 31, 2024 SATM4AS . 5045

® Right-ofwse asscly: Relor Wole 37 for discinsures.




JUNIFER GREEN TIHREE FRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40060LI0E0FTCIG0RG0
Mobes fo loancial stalemends for ibe vear ended barch 31, 2024

(Al are stabed in % lukhs, undoss olleawise stated)
As pt Axul
Iarti
Flicvtars March 31,2024 Murch 31, 2023
4. Man Current Financial Assel
Security deposit 1513 17.07
Tutal IH.B3 17,07
5, Dreferred tax assetf (Hnhility) (net)
(&) Componcnds of Theferred tax asset { (lTability) (ned)
Deferred lax assel:
Pravision for employee henelils 803 R
Lease Diability LREE L BO2.93
Decomndssionimy lability 147 6.87
Nerivative liahilicy and restatemend of capatal coeditors 12% HLGR
Uniaboubed depresinion® 11,492 83 §398.08
Grass deferred tax nxsed {A) 12 M3 46 9213737
Deferved Lax labillty:
Cash Now hedge reserve - 130
Neprecintinn nn property, plant ad equipment 1LEET AT T A4
Figehil b mise asgcis RI0.78 B4l
DL un Bguily comspuneat as per lind A5 109 FEEN RN
Fair wale ofinvestment and fimancial instunsents al amonlised cost 0ls (1]
EIR, adjustmeut of bormowings 17,95 H1.34
Gross deferred tax Hahiliey () 11,019,597 5,170.71
Met Theferred fux usseds ¢ {liabilily) (A-B) 41548 a2
(h) Reeonciliation of deferred lax assels £ (liabilily)
Opening balanee 4.5 (303,711
Tax incomed{expense) during the year recopudsed in statement profit and loss 356,74 JELTY
Thy incomed{sxpense] during the year recopnised in sther comprelicnsive ineoms L] 026
Taw expeise on cgquily component as per Tnd AS 105 - PR N-] ]
Clasing halance as at 31 March 42348 fi. ifi

(b Movement In deferved tax asseds £ (liability)

Muovement In deferred nssets £ (lialbilily) during (he vear ended March 31, 2024

(% in Inkhs}

April [, 2023 Recoguised in CHher eouity Recopnlsed in [ March 31, 2024
. nther profil and loss
lrarticulars comprehensive
imcoue
Asxels
Fravision for employee henefits B2l (1213 - 103 01
Luuse Lisbilivy #0293 3onm B384
Decommissinming Lizhility bET & - 0,60 TAT
Depivative liability and resiatement of capital creditars 2W0AR = = [19.39) 1.29
Unahsurbed depreciation® Ba08.08 - JAM.LS 1140083
9137 3T [L21) - 107 1234346
Liabdlty
Cash flonw hedye resarve 1.30 {1,309 - -
Property, plant and squipment - deprecialion 71144 - - 177565 10487.07
Rigght 1o use assels ErI40 (24.63) BT0TR
Fquity compement as per Ind A5 105 284,02 - - - 284.02
Ivwestieni ad fir value .20 - - [{L05) s
EIR Adpustusal of Borrowings 4334 - [4.39) 1195
2,170.71 {1,300 - 1,751L56 11.919.97
Mt Meferred tnx assees §(lubility) &, 66 .04 - 35074 42148
Mavensnt in deferced assels ! (liability) during the vear ended March 31, 2023 1% i lakhsp
April 1, 2022 Reengnised in Ciher ety Recogniged in | Marvel 31, 2023
olber profit nnd Foss
Particulnrs .
emnprelensive
Income
ASECLS
Travision far employee bonulits 0235 1,56 - G0 521
Lepse Liahility T134% - - Rodd R0Z.0%
Deconunissoidug Liakbility 31 - LT 647
Taerivative linhility and restatenent of capilal creditons 5 - - [49.H3) LI
Unabzarbed deprecintinn® 327133 - - 5,127,331 A, 30R.6R
400196 1.56 - 5,173,855 513737
Laulility
Casly flow hedge reserve - 1.30 - - 1.My
Fropurty, planl ad cquipment - depreciatian FA01RT 4,719.063 TONL44
Right 1o use asseis A e - 67.32 H9141
Equily component ps per Ind AS 100 T4 = 1168 - 28402
Imvestanent al Euir vakoe - - [l L]
FIR Adjushment of Dormewings 1743 = - 491 1M
4568567 1.3 11.68 4, 792,00 2070710
Med Delerred tax assets ! (llablliy) 303.71) 11,26 {1 1A} IHLTY Db

“'I liz Cn.rrlp@ny has unahsorhed d:pcr\eciuliml ul INE 66.974.52 Lakh: itdach '_’-I i }".I:f.".}; NRE -13,']43..'!-'.' Lakhs). The unahsarhed dupm;ial.iml will be availabl: for offsetting




JUNIPER GIREEN THHEE PHIVATE LIMITED
CIN-LEN DL TCIE0RED
Mutes Lo Tnancial slatenvents e the year ended March 3, 2024

{All zsmounis are slated in T lakks, 1.III]E!§-_U_1|II.'IWib-L‘ slatiadp

Particnalnrs

As ol
March 31, 2024

Asal
Miareh 31, 2023

G Mo current (At pEses (ned)

Aulvemey incvane-las [nel of provision for tax £ Mil]
Tedal

7 hher mon-currenl a5sels (Ungecured, consldered gead nnless nthenvise stated}

Frepaid pupenses
Tatal

8 Cureent Anancinl assed

Seeurily doposils
Tolzl

9 Investmenls

1

-

uled mmtual fands {measared nf fair valwe ithrough Profit and Less)
NDEC Overmigbt Mutual Furd-Dieel Flan - Greath Option

[26, 760,037 wnits (March 11, 2023: 11,902. 43}

Toltal

Appregaie bank walie and market value of unguolod myvesimruls
Apprepstc maskel value of Quoded invesimenis
Apprepie avonnl of impairment in vakee ol investimenls

‘Trade recelvahbes

Non-current

Trade recenvakles comsidered gowd - Sceurcd
Trade reciivaldis considened gaed - Unsscured*
Tutal

ZIT_ 525
1217 5015
: 136

- L6

- 0a7

- K.E
550.57 39616
SE50AT 396,16
550,57 14
21.24 3.
3124 3124

" Plition w's B0 of the Fleciriciy Act, 20008 read with Article 11 of the Fena Paichiss Apreemes dated 007, 2020 read with supplementary FTA dated 25,04 2022 cxocutod botwaoo HiTFL

and GANVML has heen filed seeking refund of INE 3124 Iakla (Marck 11, 20032 THR 31.24 Takbs) unliterally and @lepally dodectod by GLVRNIL

Current
Trade receivables considerad good - Secired

“T'rade receivables considered good - Unseoused 115580 104053
Total 1,153.50 1040.99
‘Trade receivables are non inleres) bearizg s ang grocrally o lenms of e 30 days.
Trale lecelvahles Apelnp Schedule
s il 31 March 2024
] ling for felluving perivds fron due date of prymsent
Particulars Unihilled Nl dise less than & & manths 11 years 13 years Mlore tham Tetal
_ FITETLIFT 1 year S years .
Undisputed trde receivaliles
~Considerad gond* 1,133,800 - - - - 115350
—Which have sigilices lncrease in credi risk - by % - 7 3
Mispuded brade recelvahles
~Consitlered pool ™ - - - iz - il
~Whizh have significant increase in credi risk o = . = - & - =
Todnl trade receivables 1,153.50 - - - I - - 1, 18504
Liza: Loss alloances -
Tatal L1535 = - = LT - - 1 18504
As at 31 March 2025
Oulslunding for Tollewing peciods From die date of payment

Fadtialii Tnbilbed Mot due I'“;:;::;E d m_:u;::: 1-2 years 2-3 years M:I:‘;:“ s
Undisputed trade receivables

Cansidered gond*® 1,040,590 - - - = L-05a
—Which kv slgnifieant increases in credit risk - - - - " i
Dlsputed trade recelvahles
Considerad good™ - - - 1 Rl - - 124
~Which have significan! mereass @ credil risk - = = - - - ezt
Tl trude receivables 1,040,989 - - i -t | - - - 107223
Less: Loss nllkwances =
Tatal: 104099 . - AL - - - 1.072.33
ash amdl eash cquivalents
Balancs with banks:
- U current accounis 147.11 7740
- Uhogues | DD in Dasd - 1815
- Fined deposits (with ariginal mavarity of less than 3 wonths) - 1,092.86
Tetal 147.11 1. 18847
Hher bank balances
- Fined depeosils (with rowainieg mauriiy kss than 12 mooths)* 17000 1,474 00
- Fined depoaits (with remaining maturity Jess them 12 mesths) 1608 =
Tatal 5604 1 ¥TEOD

*Depusils agpprgating nre ueder liss as per terms of contractual arrsgauenl, e ars readily accessible by the Company, ca demand.




JUNIPER GREEN THREE MIIVATE LIMITEIR
CIM-LAIRIN AN E T AGIEED

Motes 1o Enamcial statenents Tor the year ended March 51, 2004
ol are staied in 3 lakhs, unbess olberwize slaled)

Farticubars

As Ak
Mdurch 31, 2024

Axnl
Mareh 31, 2023

Roet debt reconeliiation

This sectiun sels oul analysis of nel gl s the moyement in nes debi for each of the peried presented

Ml debil as on 3 March 2124

fipening e Fair value
Fartleulars -\I:ran;lill, Cush Flows  during Lhe ::‘1::2::':;:;3;: March 51, 2024
013 ket Others
Mo ol - Begrowings (incliding enrresst maturities) A48,2 15,42 (5, 11600 - 2559 Ea 12491
Cusrem - Barmowings 1,2970.54 (1,310.64) - 13.35 -
Lase: ligbilnics 4,500, 18 (223.94) 123,82 3547 4,624 04
Tetal Borrewing (A) S 70 (4. 650.81) 12582 39691 HU, 74544
Less:
Cash amd cash equivalens (113847 1.M1.36 - - ErRT]
Ervesstmend in mastual f=d (356 146) {35EHN - 020 [R50.HT)
Met cosh & cash equivalent (B) 51,_?_&.63! 456,36 - (i) {1,097,95
Met dehd {A- 15y 0225441 (1.06447) 123,52 AT EE £50.96
Mel dlelt s on 31 Mareh 2023 .
Opening i e Fair valug
Farticulars nt-“;:'m. Cash Fluws  dhuring the “;ﬂmi;‘l';m“: March 34, 20123
032 bl fithers
Mum curto - Harrowinga |indhading, carrent maburfiies) 12555 STBLE 155667 [TFIEES]
Current - Borrowings SHAE4.50 (3723009 - {956.27) 1,297 54
Luzgsc Eabililaes 1,059,830 [35R.38) [0 L] s ) 4,3060.1%
Total Borvowing (A} HI.56T.HE 4,741 .58 64870 21261 SR HT0IM
Luss:
Ciroslhy anind cash eqoivalenis (33810 [(EA65) - (1,088.47)
Invesiment in mulual fund - [3U5.0K1) - {81 (356161
et cash & cush equivalent (I} (343.50) __ (1,234.66) - [N [] {1.584.63)
Het debt (A- B) 722400 3,502.12 646,71 02145 92194 41
13 Other current Ruancial assets
{Urmscocared, considerad guod wnless ollhierwize slated)
Heceivabie from refnled paniesirefer note 3d) (AL dis &
Trerivative amels 75U
Iisamanes elaim reegvable - 192
Interest aconeed oo hank deposils 1.56 5465
Itemeal acemed o secunity deposils .74 0.5l
Tutal 4 Bi.2%

* Chprivartivee instoumsents g1 i valoe thiowgh O01 reflect the change in f2ir value of forcign cactange Bowesd comipens, desipnied ms cash flow kedges bo payments for procuranonl ol grapeanty, pnl &

enpuipmend by the Company in foreign curmency.

14 Dther current ussels

{Unsecured, considered pasd nnless nthernise stated)

Prepaid expmses. 11524 197.63
Caplial pdvanees - 505
THher advances (meluding advance o cupleyes) 4435 42.33
Todnl 193,57




JUNIPER GREEN THREE PRIVATE LIMITEDD
CIN-U401 06 DL 2020 TCI60860

Motes to financial stalements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stuted )

15, Eyuily share eapital

Asinl Az at

Farticulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Authorised share capital:
Equity sharc capital

131,500,000 { March 31, 2023- [21,500,000) equily shares of Rs. 10M- cach 13,150.00 13,150.00
13,150.00 13,150.00

Tssued, subscribed and fully paid-up sharc capital:

131,300,000 { March 31, 2023 131,300,000) cquity shares of Ks. 100 each 13,130.00 13,130.00
13,130.00 13,130.00

A. Reconciliation of no. of equity shares

Issued, suhseribed and fully paid-up share capital Mo of shares Amuount
At Aprll 1, 2022 12,12, 20,000 12,122,040
Inerense during the vear 1,00, 80,000 1,008,
Al March 31, 2023 13,13,00,000 13,130.00
Increase during the yeur - -
Al Mareh 31, 2024 ] 13,1 3.00,000 13,130.00

B. Terms/Rights attached to shares

TermsTigh ched to equity sharcs

The Compumy has only one class of equity shares having a pur value of Rs. 104 per share, Fach holder of equity shares is entilled Lo one vole per share. In the event of liquidation of
the Compuny, the holders of equity shares will be entitied o receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion o the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

C. Shares held by holding company
Ol of equity shares issued by the Compuny, shares held by ils holding company arc as below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
131,300,000 { March 31, 2023: 131,300,000 equily shates of Rs, 10¢- cach held by Juniper Green Cuergy Private Limited, the holding
company and its nomince 13, 130,00 13, 130000

D. Details of shareholders holdings more than 5% shares

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Mame of the shareholder Mumber of shares  Percentageof  Number of shares  Percentnge of
held Haolding held Iolding

Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Tuniper Green Energy Private Limited, the holding company and its nominee 13,13, 00,0000 100L00% 13,13,00,000 1000

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharchnlders‘members and other declaration received from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest, the above
shareholding represent hoth legal and beneficial ownership of shares,

E. Details of cquily shares held by promnters
As at March 31, 2024

Promoter Name Number, of shares Change in Mumber of shares % of total Shares "o change in
at the beginning of shareholding at the end of the  of (he Company sharcholding

the year during the year year during the year

Juniper Green Fnergy Private Limited and its nominee 13,15,00,000 . 13, 13,060,000 100, 00% -

As ut March 31, 2023

Promoter Name Mumber, of shares Change in Mumber of shares % of total Shares Yo eliange in
at the heginning of sharchelding al the end of the  of the Company shareholding

the year during the year year during the year

Juniper CGireen Energy Privale Limited and its nomince 12,12 20,000 100,820,000 13,13,00,000 100,00% -

F. The Company has nol issued any shaves porsuant to a contruel withoul payment being received in cash in the current yeur and preceeding five years. The Company has nol
issncd any honus shares nor has Mere been aiy buy hack in current year and preceeding five years,




JUMIPER GHEEN THHREE FPRIVATE LIMITED

CIN-U 060 2020FTCIG0860

Motes to Anancial stutements For (he vear ended March 31, 2024
(ANl amounts are stabed in T lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Ax af As al

Parliculars

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

T T

It Other Equity

{n) Hetained earnings®

Cipening (3,485.12) (a2 R
Al Met (boss) for the year {1,72598) (2.874.72)
Add - Other comprehensive income for the year, net of fax 585 (7.51)
Met (deficit) in stutement of profit and loss (5,205.25) (3A485.12}

(i) Qther Comprehensive Tncame**

Dpening LT
Adldition rﬁ_clmim?in Cash flew hedge reserve, vet of tax (5.30) 6.30
Tatal = 6,30

(1) Equity component a5 per Ind A% 104

Crprning 1,371.13 1,314.71
Adel; Adjustinent on account of equity companent as per Tnd AS 109 {net of tax) - Sh.42
Tulal 1,271.13 LATLIA
Total other syuity (ath) (3,834,132} (2, 107.69)

+Refuined earnings refer to the the net profiv{loss) retained by he Company for its business aclivitics.
Hher Comprehensive income comprises of remncasurement of hedpging reserve,

Barrowings

Seewred

Tenn Loan from financial instilutions* 7203291 7525232
Unseeured

Optimally convertible debentures [OCD** (refir node 34) 12,614,000 12 614.00
1esn Fromn holding company**#* (refer nole 34) A 78,0 34400
Amount disclosed wider the head "current borrowings” (refer nole 19) (3,152.2%) 3,245,000
Total 51!972.151 R4, 97032
MNute

+Represents term lonn wvailed from Pewer Finance Corporation (*PIC") in INR specifically for the purpose of setling up 190 MW solar power project in Gujaral which cormes mferes! al
8.50% per snmon el nexl reset is on July 15, 20235, The fern bean is repayble over a tenure of 19 years in monthly instalments strtings from 15 January 2023 and ending on 13 December
20041, The term Inan is scoured by:
{1} Exclusive First Charge by wiy of Morlgage over

all the immovable properties, inclucding any leaschold rights, i any, both preseat and future;
- all tangble wnovable assets, including movesble plad and machinery, mchinery spares, eguiginent, teols and accessories, fumnilure, fixlures, vehicles and all other muowithle assets wherever
silwded, hath present and fure;
- all intangible assets including goadwill, intellectunl property rights, undertaking and wnealled cagital, both present and fature;

- all the Current Assets, including but nol Fmiled o, book debds, operating cish Movws, Reccivables, commizsions, revenues of wlalsoever nature and whenever anising, both present and tutune;

- all accounts of the Harrower, including, e Trust and Betention Account and the Sub-Accouni{s), the DSRA of 2 quaners of principal inel interest payment, any lotter of credit and any
reservels) or any oflier bank accounts of the Borrewer, wherever maintained {or any otler accownt in substitition thereof} thal meay be opeacd in accordance with the Trust awd Retention
Aceo! and the Financing or viher Project Documents and all funds from lme 1o time depasited therein, the Reveivables and all Permitted Investments or olher securitics representing all
amounts credibed to the Urost mnl Retention Account.

(i) assigmamend (o the extent permitted uncler the Applicalle Laws) of:
- all the rights. titles, interests, henefils, claims and demands whatsoever in the Project Documents! Conlracts {including but not limited to Power Perchise Agreement{z) memorimdun of
understanding, peckage! construction contracts, &M relvied agreements, service vontrcls, Insurasce contracts & Insurance provesds anc all olher Contracis);
- iell thee rights, titles, interests, benefits, clains and demands in, to and uneler all the Clearanecs relating to the Project;

all he rights, titles, interesis, licenses, bencfits, claims and demands i amy letter of credits, guarantes, liquidated damages, performance bond amel corpurite gurrantes, bank guaranies {ir
apreed by the isswing bank (1) or any other security provided £ o be provided to the Borrower by any party under the Project Documents ¢ Coalracts; amd

{iii} pledye of specified pereentage of Equity Shares and (husd Fguily, both present and future, hekl by the Fledgor.

{iv) an irmevecnhbe and uneonditional Corporate Guarsntee from the holding company for the purpose of repaymentpayment of Seeured Obligatiens that shall be released fter compliance of
gertaim condilions,

#+ Represents subseriplion fo OCD by the Holding Company which are convertible inta Equity shires al the option of the Helding Company or redeemlile at the option of the Company on ef
before March 31, 2043 in sccordance with the condifions of (e OCD Subscription Agreement. Mo interest shall neerue or chargal or become due or payable il March 31, 2023 or one year
fromm Praject Commercial Operation Date (C0TF) or first payment of instalment of Tenn Lean Facility, whichever is ler. Inaceordance with IND A 109, such OC1Y were separated inte pssel
andl equity component, Lty componeat has been classified wnder (ther Bquity (refer note 16) and lability component under non-current barrowings, Inlerest on liability component i5
reeagnizsed wsing e effective interest method,

*%% Weprosents unseeured loan from the Holding Company which is repayable on ar before March 31, 2042, The applicable fntcrest rate is 8.45% (0.05% kess than intercst rate applivable on
term boan availed For 190 MW project).

Frovisivns

MNon-current

Provision lor graluity {refer note 36) 1102 41,64
| decenmissioning provision |refer nole 32 B0 43.52 4001
Tuotal 54.64 _ 8170




JUNIPER GHERN THREE PRIVATE LIMITED
CIM-U40 06D L2020PTC 360860

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

i As at As at
artleulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
19 Borrowings
Secured
Buyers credit® 1,297.54
Currend waurites of long term bomowvings 1,152.29 3,245.00
Total 3,152.29 4,541.54

*Buyer's credit was availed by the Company (against the Letter of credit issued by luduslnd Bank Limited) from Union Bank of iz - [uleai, which was repaid durings the year, Inferest an

Buyer's credil was 4.08% per annun,

20 Trade paynbles

Total owtstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refor nede 33) 7447 S, 6K
- Tatal outstanding dees of creslilens other than micre and small enterprises {for payable to related party refer nole 14) 196,65 136,65
Tatal 17112 147.33
Tracle payables are non-interest bearing ond are nommally seltled 0-90 days terms.
Trade Fayalles Apeing Sclhedule
As at 31 March 2024
Ounistanding for fallowing perlods from duc date of payment
Fartlcul 1. ™
artlculars Unbilled eg (i 1-2yenrs 23 yeurs Mure tlan 3 Fudul
I year Vears
Tolal sststanding dwes of micre enterprises and small enlerprises - T4.47 - 7447
Total owtstanding dues of creditors other than micse enterprizes and small enterprises 4187 101,35 143 - 196,05
Tatal 9187 17582 243 = - 271.12
—
*There are ne disputed (e payalle. Hence, the same iz not dischsed in the ageing schedule.
As il 31 March 20023
Cutstanding for following periods rom due dale of payment
ienl
melicuin Linbilled g 1-2 years 2-3 years Mreiiiean J Tatal
1 vear YUHTS
Total outstanding dues of micro emerpriscs and small enterprises 50,68 - - 50,68
Tl outstancling dues of ereditars other than micm enlerprises and small enterprises a8.497 GT.08 - 136,65
Total G847 11836 - - = 187.33
There are no disputed trade payobles, |lence, the sane have not disclosed in the apeing schedule.
21 Other current finuncial Falilities
Peyable fior purchise of property, plant and equipment {inchudes INR 63.22 lakhs (March 31, 2023: 1IN 466.45 Lakls) V442 76759
pavathles to micro and small coterprises, refer nate 33) ;: i
Retention money payatle (ichudes TNR L9566 lakhs {March 31, 2023: TNR 50%.99 Lakhs)
N 3 3 S2E1H GE. 37
pawihles o micro and small enterprises, refer note 33)
Inferest accrued bul not due on fenm kan 286.47 1671
Intercet aecrued bl mol due on buyess eredin = 1114
Interest acerued bl nol due on OCDs from holdimg: conpasny 96497 -
Interest on loan from Holding Company 3321 .58
Payable to related parties {refer note 34) 149,35 100.14
Emplovee relied Hahilities 11.55 51.24
Tatal 1118.71 E!IEG.lT
22 Other currend linbililies
Stalutory ducs 125.56 21.72
Tuful 115,56 772
23 Provisions
Current
Provision for compensated absences B.56 nw
Pravisions for gratuity {refer mde 36) (115 0.04
Tolal B.61 334l




JUNIPER GREEN THREE PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN-Udt1 06 2020PTCIR0R60

Motes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
ANl ancusts are stated in 2 lakhe, unless otherwise staled)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

24 Revenue from operatlons
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of Power
Less: Rebate and reactive charpes
Total

25 Other income
Interest ineome on
Fixed deposils
Securily deposils
Incoane tax refund
Foreign exchange gain (net)
Met gain on investment in muotual fund measured at fair value through profit and less
Profit on redemplion of mutual fond
Gain on termination of lease
Other miseellaneous income
Total

26 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus
Ciratuily expenses
Compensated absences
Contribution to provident snd other funds
Staff welfure Expenses
Total

17 Finance cost
Interest on loan from finamcial instilulion
Interest om Buyers Credit
Tnlersst on loan from holding company
Interest expenses on lease Hahilities
Interest cxpenses on decommissioning liabilitics
Interest on QCDs from holding company™®
Other borrowing cost
Tulal

11,237.99 10,7230
{155.25) (137.5%)
11,082.74 10,585.42
108,69 480,68
0.73 31
2.33 (4]
357 14.02
087 L.1%
4915 10,83
4.59 -
10.0% 27.09
142,02 536.69
238,59 71416
7.24 149,06
4.21 23.2%
14,57 4950
35.67 G2
300.28 916,93
6,341.29 5,308.08
56.89 285,99
325 0.65
IR6.5R 352.84
351 .22
1072.1% 01989
2085 1,357.00
1,926,060 #,327.67

*Includes intercst on optivnally converlible debentures ('OCDs") from holding company using elfective interest rate method as per Ind A5 10% INR

nil (March 31, 2023: TNR 1,019.8% lakhs)

2

on

Depreciation and amorlization expense

Depreciation of properly plant and equipment {Refer note 3(1))
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refor note 3(ii))

Total

29 Other expenses
Operational & maintenance expenscs
Insurance Expense
Travelling and conveyvance
Seourily expenses
DEM and Foroensting charpes
Cuest house expenses
Logal and professicnal expenses
Office expenses
Fates & faxes
Communication cxponses
Fayment b awditor (note - 1)
Electricity expenscs
Renl expenses
Busincss support services
Miscellanecus expenses
Tatal

407558 3953.58
220.03 221,81
4,295.61 4.175.69
1649.1% 14417
IR1.33 150,10
k) |42.65
152.99 97.97
G079 %501
24,50 G039
346 T1.20
.64 2435
2524 17,59
S.la 15.3%9
I0.58 [ ]
= 4.76
- 421
I70.85 -
.68 3254
#24.99 48,33
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For the year ended

For the year ended

Fartitiaes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Mote - 1

Payment to auditor comprises fee (inclusive of GST)

Anclit Tee 443 547

Tax audil [ee 1.77 1.22

In other capacity

Orther services (group reporting, certification fee and athers) 3.54 3.08

Reimbursement of expenscs (.54 .28

Total 1058 12.05
30 Income tax expenses

{a) Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss comprises:

Current 1ax cxpense . -

Deferred tax churge / (credit) {3156.74) (3R1.79)

Inceme tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (356.74) (381.79)

(h) Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

et (ain) / Toss on revaluation of cash Aow hedpges (1.30) 1.30

Met {gain) on remeasurcment of delined benefit plans 1.21 (1.56)

Total (0.09) (0.26)

{¢) Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplicd by India's domestic tax vate :

Accounting profit'(loss) before income tax (2,082.72) {3,256.51)

Applicable statutory income tax rate 17.16% 17.16%

Tax as per applicable statutory income tax rate (357.39) (558.82)

Adjustments lor &

Adjustment of tax rclating to earlier years (.65 (0,52)

Expenses not allowed under Income Tax Act and others - 177.55

Tncome tax expense reported in the stalement of profit and loss (356.74) (381.79)

The tax rate wsed for the year 2023-24 and 2022-23 is the Corporate tax rate of 17.16% payable by corporute entities in India on faxable profits

under Seotion 115 BAB of the Income Tax Act 1961,
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3L

31.

Farnings Per Share (EPS):

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable 1o equity sharcholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

For the purpose of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to cquity shareholders
and the weighled average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects ol all dilutive potential
equily shares, if any.

The following data reflects the inputs to caleulation of basics and diluted EPS:

| particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net {loss) as per statement of profit and loss for ealculation of basic
LPS and dilutive EPS kT 2] (5879.72)
E’:;ghtcd average number of equity shares for caleulating basic/diluted 13.13.00.000 13,01,95.342
Mominal value per sharc (Z) 10,00 10,00
Basic & Diluted earnings per share (1) (1.31) {2.21)

Signilicant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that afTect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilitics, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liahilitics. Uncertainty about these assumptions and cstimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or lahilitics affected in [ulure years,

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s cxposure to risks and uncertainties imcludes:
« Capital management (Refer note - 39)

+ Financial risk management objectives and policies (Reler note - 41)

» Sensitivily analysis disclosures (Refor note - 41)

A, Judgments
In the process of applying the Company accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as a lessee:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any years covered by an
option to cxtend the lease il il is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option 1o lerminate the
lease, if it is reasonably cerlain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option Lo renew or lerminate the lease. That is,
it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. Afler
the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumsiances
Lhat is within its control and affects its ability to exercisc or not lo exercise the option to renew or to terminate (&.g.,
conslruction of significant lcaschold improvements or significant customizalion to the leased asset). Refer to Note 37 lor
information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and lermination
options that are not included in the lease term.
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B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncettainty at the reporting date, thal have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next [inancial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimales on parameters available when the financial
statements were preparcd. Exisling circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumsiances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they oceur,

a) Impairment of non-financial assets
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires asscssment of several external and internal
factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the asscts.

b) Taxes:

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assels can be recognized is based on an assessmenl
ol the probability of the futurc taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Recognition of deferred tax liability on undistributed profits — The extent to which the Holding Company can control
the timing of reversal of deferred tax liability on undistribuled profits of its subsidiaries requires judgement.

¢) Defined benefits plan (gratuity)

The cost of the delined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may dilTer from actual developments in the
future. These include the determination of the discount rate; futurc salary increases and mortality rates. Due to Lhe
complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined henefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed al each reporting date,

d) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial asscts and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair valuc is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The
inputs to these models are taken from obscrvable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degrec of
judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
gboul these [actors could affect the repoerled [air value of financial instruments.

¢) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

‘The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uscs its incremental borrowing
rate (TRR) to measure lease liabilities, The TBR is the rale of interest that the Company would have Lo pay to borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value Lo the right-of-use assct
in a similar cconomic environment, The TBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requircs
catimation when no observable rates are available. The Company estimates the IBR as rate at which the borrowing is
availed during Lhe year.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labilities within the next financial
year, arc described below, The Company based ils assumptions and estimates on paramelers available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to markel changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes arc reflected in the
assumplions when they occur.




Juniper Green Three Private Limited
CIN-U40106DL20Z0PTCI60800

Motes to financial statements Tor the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1) Provision for decommissioning
As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilitics for the commissioned 190 MW solar project in
Gujarat, the Company has recognized a provision amounting to INR 43,52 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 40.01 Lakhs) for
decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on frecheld land. In determining the fair value of the
provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to dismantle and
remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The Company estimates that the costs would be
realised upon the expiration ol the PPA’s term. The provision is based upon current cost estimates and has been determined
on a discounted basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of inflation basis on industry practice, The
liming and amount of future cxpenditures are reviewed annually, together with rate of inflation for escalation of current
cost extimates and the interest rate used in discounting the cash {lows.

o) Useful life of property, plant and equipment
The Company uses its technical expert along with historical and industry trends for detaining the economic life of an asset.
The useful life is reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of revision, the unamorlized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

33. The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified by management from the available information, which has been relied
upon by the auditors. On the basis of the information and records available with the management, outstanding dues to the
Micro, Small and Medium Lnterprises Development Act, 2006 are as [ollows.

Particulars - March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023

The }'.:1'|nc1pal amount and the interest due t‘hen:nu remaining unpaid o any 33135 1,027.12
| supplier as at the end of each accounting perivd i

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 333.35 1,027.12

Interest duc on above® ) il Nil

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED
Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond Nil Mil
the appointed day during each accounting period

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the Wil Nil
period) but without adding the inlerest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpait-j.al the end of each

: ; Mil il
accounting period
The amount of [urther interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above arc actually Nil il
1

paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
cxpendilure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

* The amount of principal and interest is not due te Micro and Small Enterprises vendors as per the terms of the agreement
entered into with such vendors.
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34. Related Party Transactions

A) Name of related parties and related parties relationship

Relationship with the Company

Names of Related PMarties

Holding company

Juniper Green Fm:rw Privale Limited

Fellow subsidiaries (With whom
transaction have taken place)

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

Tuniper Green Field Private Limited
Misagra Rencwable Energy Private Limited

| Juniper Green Beam Private Limiled

Tuniper Green Stellar Private Timited
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Timited

Juniper Green Beta Privale Limited

| Juniper Green Gamma One Privale Limited

Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited

| Key management personnel

MNaresh Mansukhani, Director

Parag Agrawal, Direclor

Priva Sharma, Company Secrelary w.e.f, 20th 'Septcmhu 2023

Sandhya Verma, Company Secretary up to 31 July, 2023

B) Statement of Transactions with Related Parties
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Issuc of equity shares o
_Juniper Green Energy Private Limiled - 1,008.00
Issue of optionally convertible debentures (‘OCDs’)
Tuniper Green Energy Private Timited - 968,00
Intercompany loan taken
Juniper Green Encrgy Privale Limited 1259.00 649.00 |
Intercompany loan repaid
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited - 300.00
Reimbursement of expenses
‘Misagra Renewable Encrgy Private Limited (0.18) -
Juniper Green Sipma Private Limited 0.17 (5.42)
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 338 20.39
Juniper Green Beta Privale Limited 348 36.41
Juniper Green Field Private Limiled {(0.24) 4.49 |
Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limited - 21.73
Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited - 17.12
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 27.52 -
| Juniper Green Gamma One Privale Limited 20.17 -
Interest expenses on intercompany loan
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 36.25 0.65
Interest expenses on OCDs o |
Juniper Green Energy Private Limiled 1,072.19 -
Reimbursement of ¢xpenses (Busmess support ser uces} =
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 10.85 -
Transfer of materials
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 5.27 -~
Salary and other benefits i
Sandhya Verma 12.11 6.40
I'reeti Hans | - 2.19
Priva Sharma ] .96 -

*All related party transactions arc at arm’s length and in the normal course of business.
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) Balances Outstanding as at Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars _ March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
‘Optionally convertible debentures (‘OCDs") : s

Juniper Green Lnergy Private Limited ) 12.614.00 12,614.00

Intercompany loan payable

Juniper Green Encrzy Privale Limited 478.00 349.00

Interest on OCDs payable

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 964.97 -
Receivable for expenses )

Juniper Green Energy Privaie Limited _ - 24.2%
Misagra Renewable Energy Private Limited 0.18 14.47
Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited ) - ~ BOS

Interest payable on intercompany loan _

Tuniper Green Energy Private Limited 33.21 0.58

Pavable for expenses _ _

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited 0.17 ~ -
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 23.77 20.39

Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 39.89 3641

Juniper Green Field Private Limited 4.25 .49

Juniper Green Ray Two Private Limiled 21.73 21.73

Juniper Green Stellar Private Limited 17.12 17:12
| Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 22.25 -

Junmiper Green Gamima One Private Limited 20.17 -
_Trade payable for business support services B

Tuniper Green Energy Private Limited ) 0.93 -

D) Juniper Green Energy Private Limited has given a corporate Guarantee for borrowing availed by the Company
amounting to TNR 77,232.00 Lakhs (March 31, 2023 : INR 77,232.00 Lakhs).

35. Commitments and Contingency

{a) Lease
Reler note 37 for lease related commitments,

{b) Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining (o be executed on capital account and not provided for amounted to INR
.77 Lakhs as on March 31, 2024 (net off advances) (March 31, 2023; INR 273.89 Lakhs).

{(£) Contingent Liabilities not provided for as at March 31, 2024 , are as follows: —

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
PPerformance Bank Guarantee issued by Bank in favor of NIIAT - 2.35

6. Employee Benefits

{a) Defined contribution plan
The Company makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees, The Company's contribution to the Employee Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner.
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During Lhe vear, company has recognized the following amounts under profit and loss:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31; 2023

Employers” contribution to Employee’s provident and Other Funds

14.57 449,80
charged 1o profit and loss

(b} Defined benefit plan
Crratnity and other post-employment benefits
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service
gets a gratuity on departure atl 15 days salary (last drawn salary) lor each completed year of service. These benelils
arc unfunded, and Company provides for liability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valuations.

Risks associated with Gratuity plan provisions

The Company is cxposcd to number of risks in the defined henefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined
benefit plans and management’s estimation of the impact of these risks are as lollows:

Salary growth risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated by reference to the future salaries ol plan
participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Interest rate risk
A decrease in interest rate in future years will increase the plan liability.

‘Life expectancy risk

The present value of the defined benelit plan liability is calculated by reference 1o the best estimate of mortality of
plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan lability,

Withdrawals Risk

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
valuations can impacl the plan liability.

The following tables summaries the components of net benelit expense recognized in the statement of prolil and loss
account and the [unded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

Employce benefit expenses recognised in profit and loss:

Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 422 13.92
| Tnterest cost on benefit liability 3.02 5.14
Actuarial{gain) { loss recognized in the year (7.08) 9.07
Benefit ei.ﬁi.mse recognized in statement of profit and loss: 7.24 19.06
Benelil expense recognized in statement of other comprehensive (7.06) 2.07
income
Balance Sheet: )
Particular March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 11.17 41.73
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
“Present value of obligation as at the beginning 41,73 67.70
Current service cost 4,22 13.92
Interest cost 101 5.14
| Re-measurement {or Actuarial) (zain) / loss B (7.06) 9.07
Acquisition/ Divestures/ Transition {30.73) (54100
Present ¥alue of Obligation as at the end 11.17 41.73
Current Liability (Short term) 0.05 0.04
Non-Current Liability (Long term) 11.12 41.69

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the Company’s plans are shown

below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31 » 2023

Discount rate 7.22% 7.53%
| Attrition rate - 5.00% 5.00%

Salary Escalation Rate T 10.00% 10.00%

The estimates of futurc salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniomty,
promation and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market,

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent acluarial appraisers. Discount
faclors are determined closc to cach year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on
management's historical experience.

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair

value of plan assets has not been presented.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as follows:

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
1) Impact of the change in discount rate
Preseni value of obligation at the end of the year )
a) Impact due to increase of 1% (1.68) (5.85)
b) Tmpact due to decrease of 1% 2.09 7.18
2) Impact of the change in salary

| Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impact due to increase of 1% 1.96 391
) Tmpact duc to decrease of 1% (1.62) {5.25)
3) Impact of the change in attrilion rate

| Present value of obligation at the end of the year
a) Impacl due Lo increase of 1% = {0.68) {2.00)
b) Tmpact due to decrease of 1% 0.78 2.27

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined bascd on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benelil
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions vceurring al the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impaet of change not caleulated,

The following paymenis are expected contributions to the delined benefit plan in future years:
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March 31, 2024

Particulars B March 31, 2023
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) 0.05 | 0.04
Between 2 and 5 vears B 0.21 0.19
Between 6 and 10 vears _ 0.25 0.30

| Beyond 10 years B ) 10.66 41.20 |

Weighted average duration of Gratuity Plan — 17.44 years as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: 18.12 years).

37, Leases:

The Company also has lease contracts for its land and properties used in its operations. These lease contracts generally
have lease term of 29.5 years.

The Company has also certain leases with lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value assets. The Company
applics the *short term lease” and “low value assels’ recognition exemptions for these leases,

a)  Seloul below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recogniscd and the movements during the year:

Particulars Leasehold Land Building Total
Balance as at March 31, 2022 4,762.88 30.49 4,802.37 I
Additions during the year 646,710 - 646.70
Adjustments r]ﬁring the year (32.58) - (32.58)
Depreciation for the year (206.35) (15.46) (221.81)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 5,170.65 24.03 5,194.68
Additions during the year 123.82 - 123.82
Disposals during the year - _ (24.03) (24.03)
Depreciation for the year (220.03) - (220.03)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 ) 5,074.45 g 5,074.45

b) Sct out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year R 4366.18 3,757.80
Addition during the year 123.82 646,70
On leases terminated during the year (28.61)

Accretion of interests 3R6.58 352.84
Payments _ (223.94) {358.58)
Adjustment during the year _ - (32.58)
Balance as at the end of the year 4,624.03 4,366.18
Current = 114'5_
Non-current 4,624.03 4,348.72 |

The maturity analysis of lease liabilitics is disclosed in Note 41,

The effcctive interest rate for lease labilitics is 9.00% - 9.50% with maturity in year 2052,

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilitics for the commissioned 190 MW solar project in
Gujaral, the Company has recognised a provision amounting to TNR 1,291.76 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,187.56 lakhs)
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for decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on leased land. In determining the fair value of the
provision, assumplions and estimates arc made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to dismantle and
remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The Company estimates that the costs would be
realised upon the expiration of the leasc term and PPA’s term. The provision is based upon current cost estimates and has
been determined on a discounted basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate ol inflation basis on industry
practice. The timing and amount of future expenditures are reviewed annually, together with rate of inflation for escalation
ol current cost estimates and the inferest rale used in discounting the cash flows.

¢} The following arc the amounts recognised under the statement of profil and loss:

Particnlars _ March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 |
| Depreciation of right-of-use assets ) 220.03 221.81
Interest expense on lease liabilities 386.58 352.84
Expenses related to shorl lerm leases 40.76 46.68
Total amount recopnised in the profit and loss for the year 047.37 621.33

3.

Total Company's total cash outflow for leases (including for short torm and leases of low value assets) for the year ended
March 31, 2024 is TNR 26470 (March 31, 2023: INR 405.26 lakhs).

The Company is engaged in business of sale of electricity. Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the financial
inlormation of the Company as a whole for decision-making and aceordingly the company has a single reportable segmenl,
The sale of power has been billed to a single customer. Further, the operations of the Company are limited within one
peographical segment, [ence, no further disclosure is required to be made.

Capital management

For the purpose of capilal management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other cquity reserves atiributable to
the equily holders. ‘The primary objective of the Company capital management is to maximize the shareholder valuc.

The Company manages its capilal structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is nel debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debl, loans and borrowings,
trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March il, 2023 |
| Borrowings B  85,124.91 89,512.86
Add: Trade payables B 27112 | 187.33
Add: Other current financial liabilities ) 2,118.71 2,156.17
Less: Cash and cash equivalents _ 147.11 95.61 |
Net debis (A) 87,367.63 91,760.75
Shareholders’ Funds (B) 9,295.88 11,022.31
Capital and net debt (C=A+R) 96663.51 1,02,783.06 |
Gearing ratio (%a) (D=AJC) 90.38% 59.28%

In order the achieve this overall ebjective, the capital management of the Company, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that they meet financials convents attached to interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define the capital structure
requircments.

40. Fair value and Fair Value hierarchy

a. [air value
‘The following table shows the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of Company’s financial assets,
other than those with carrying amount that are reasonable approximations of fair values:
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Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
Particulars il Malue
Marech 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2024 2024 2023 2023
Financial Asscis
Financial assels measured at amortised cost il :
Trade reccivables 1,185.04 1,185.04 1,072.23 1.072.23
Cash & cash equivalent 14711 47.11 | 1,188.47 1,188.47
Other bank balances 356.08 356.08 1,978.00 1,978.00
Other current [inancial assets 248 248 75.68 7568
Security deposits 18.83 18.83 17.64 1 7.64
Financial assets measured at Tair value throngh
profit and loss . .
Tnvestment in mutual fund 950.87 | 950.87 396.16 396.16
I'inancial assets measured at fair value through
OCT - N
Derivate asscts - - 7.60 7.60
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost _
Bomowings ) #5,124.91 85,124,491 49,512,864 RBO.512. 86
Lease liabilities 4,624.03 4.624.03 4,366.18 4,366.18
Trade payable _2mn.az2 271,12 187.33 _ 187.33
Other current linancial liabilities 2,118.71 2,118.7 2.156.17 2,156.17 |

The management assessed Lhat cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial asscts, trade
payables, and other current linancial liabilities except Forward Contract Payable, paid approximate their carrying amounts
largely due to the shorl-lerm maturities of these instruments

The fair value of financials assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchange in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a foreed or liguidation sale. The following method and
assumptions were used to cstimale the lair value:

Quoted investmeni in mutual fund - The fair values ol the mutual funds are derived from quoted market prices in active
markels,

Other-The fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined by using discounted cash Now model.

Derivative Liabilities / Assets- For hedge related effectivencss review and related valuation, details are presented in note
42,

h. Fair Value hierarchy

The judgement and estimales made in determining the fair value ol the financial instruments that arc (a) recognized at [air
value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which [air value are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classilied its financial
instruments into the three levels preseribed under accounting standard. An explanation of cach level ollows under the
table,

All assets and liabilities for which [air value is measured or disclosed in the financial slalemenl are categorized with in the
fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:
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Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market price in aclive markets for identical assets or liahilitics
Level 2 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
Level 3 Valuation technigque for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in

unabservable
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on Mareh 31, 2024
. G 3:::‘:“:1“ Significant | Significant
Particulars ; Total : observable | unobservable
Valuation active 7 :
markits inputs puls
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit and loss
Tavestment . Joubil, g March 31,2024 950.87 950.87 - #

guoted

value through OCT

Financial assets measured at fair

Derivative Asscts

March 31, 2024

Quanlitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2023

e ;i“::e::l Significant | Significant
Particulars ; Total S observable unobservahble
Yaluation aclive inputy inputs
. markets -
- ({Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Assels
Financial asscts measured at fair
value through profit and loss
Investment in mutual fund March 31, 2023 19616 196.16 ) )
quoted - -
IFinancial assets measured at Tair
value through OCI o
Derivative Assets March 31, 2023 7.60 7.60 |

| Financial Liabilities

41. Finanecial risk management ohjective and policies
The Company principal financial liabilitics comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
ol these financial liabilities is to support the Company operations. The Company principal financial assels comprise, cash
and bank balance, other reccivables that derive directly from its operations.
The Company is cxposcd to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supporled by a linancial risk committee that advises on

financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee
provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activitics are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company s policies and risk objectives. Tt is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes
may be undertaken. The Board of Dircctors reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of these risks, which are

summarized below,
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(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparly will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from their eperating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and [rom ils financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instraments,

The Company assesscs and manages credil risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of
assumptions, inputs and factors specilic w the class of financial asscts, Low credit risk - Investments, loans, trade
receivables and other financial assets. Moderate credit risk / High credit risk - Loans and other [inancial assets. Mone of
the Company's cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Provision for expected
credit loss is based on 12 month expected eredit loss/life-time expeeted credit loss,

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally invests in depesits
with financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencics. Investments primarily include
investment in fixed deposits. The Company’s major trade receivables and unbilled revenue are only with government
owned counterparty and are recoverable under the terms of power purchase agreements, Therefore, these rade receivables
and unhilled revenue are considered high quality,

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance
Sheel

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

- I'rade receivables 1,185.04 1,072.23

- Seeurily deposils 18.83 17.64
- Other current financial assets 248 83.28
- Investments O50.87 39616

The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uscs a provision matrix
to compute the expected credit loss allowanee [or trade receivables.

(ii) Liguidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity proliles of {inancial assets and liabilities for the Company.
The Company has established an appropriate hquidity risk management framework for it’s short-term, medium term and
long-term funding requirement.

LExposure to liguidity risk
The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial Habilitics at the reporling date. The contractual cash

flow amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

Financial linhilities:

¥ Includes interest payahlc amount.

Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2024 Carrying On Less than HATNEER More than -
amount one and L'otal
Demand One year live years
five years

Borrowings* 85,124.91 - [0,189.83 | 39.947.98 1,13,910.88 1,64,048.69

Lease Liability 4,624.03 - 241.1 1,150.97 17,120.80 18,512.87
Trade payables 271.12 - 271.12 - - 271.12

Other eurrent financial liahilities 2,118.71 - 2,118.71 - - 2,118.71 |

Total 92,138.77 - 12,820.76 41,098.95 1,31,031.68 1,84,951.39
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Coniractual cash flows
March 31, 2023 Carrying On Less than e More than
amount one and . Total

i Demand One year five years
= . five years : I
Borrowings® R9.512.86 - 10,921.05 40,386.75 1,23,440.23 1,74,748.03
T.easc Liahilily - 4,366.18 - - 203.61 1,075.91 16,903.78 18,183.30
Trade payables 187,33 - 187.33 ¢ . _187.33
 Other eurrent financial Tiabilities 2,156.17 - 2156.17 - - 215617
Total 96,222.54 - 13,468.16 41,462.66 1,40,344.01 1,95,274.83

# Inclades interest payable amount,

(iii) Marlket risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash Mows of a financial instrument will flucluale because of changes in
markel prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include borrowings and bank deposits.

{a) Foreign Currency Risk

The Company has international lransactions and is exposcd to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognized asscls and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the
Company's functional currency.

Foreign currency risk exposure:

Particular Currency | March 31,2024 |  March 31, 2023
(INRE) (INR)

Financial liabilities ~ §
Buyers Credit B usp - 1,297.54
 Payables for Property, plant and cquipment 118D _ 110.07 108.54

Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from forcign currency denominated financial
instrumenis,

Particular B March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Increase by 5% 5.50 7030
Decrease by 5% (3.50) (70.30)

(h) Interest rate risk

Interest rale risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in markel interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Company's long-term obligation with floating interest rate,

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s intercst rate risk arises majorly from the borrowings carrying variable rate of interest. This obligation
exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company s borrowing to interest rate changes as
reported to the management al the end of the reporting period are as lollows:

Variable-rate instruments ) March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023
Loan and bank borrowings® i m
Total = &
)/;:-:f:,!_". If,;\

' i :»?lf |5

\ Vel Jos
\'-. )f\_ \ e, ':.:' _-"
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Interest rate sensitivily analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is aflected through the
impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Increase by 0.5% * = -
Decrease by 0.5% * ) i =

*The interest rale of borrowings has been fixed @ 8.50% for three years (upto July 14, 2025), hence the company has no
interest rate risk on it's loans and borrowings as at 31 March, 2024,

(¢) Price Risk
The Company’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVTPL. To manage the price risk

arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its pertfolio of assets,

P'rice risk exposure:

Particular B March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit & Loss .
Investment in Mutual fund ) G50.87 396.16

Sensitivily analysis
Profit or loss and equity is scnsitive to higher/lower prices of instruments on the Company's profit for the year:

Particulars } March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Increase by 3% 47.54 19.81
Decrease by 5% : {47.54) {19.81}) |

42, Cash flow hedges

A, Risk management strategy

‘The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of [oreign currency risk. The risk being hedged is
the risk of potential zain/loss due (o Muctuation in foreign currency rates. The use of forward contracts is covered by
the Company’s overall strategy. The Company does not use forward {or speculative purposes. As per the strategy of
the Company, import of capilal goods shall be covered by hedge, considering the risks associated with the hedging of
such capital goods, which effectively fixes the hability of such imports and mitigates or climinate the financial and
market risks in India (the place of business of the Company),

Hedge ratio is the relationship between the quantity of the hedging instrument and the quantity of the hedged item. In
the given case, lotal payment expected for imperl of modules are hedged under the forward contracts with the
approximately equivalent amount and at the same dates. Hence hedge is considered highly effective on the basis of
cffectiveness lest of purchase of capital assels and corresponding forward contaet taken for final payment.

0 Th
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B. Other hedge relaied disclosures
(i) The maturity profile of hedging instrument is as follows:

: Less than 1-3 Maore than Total
Particulars 1 yvear yeuars 3 years
31 March 2024
Derivalive asseis - - o - d
31 March 2023 -
Derivative assets - _
IForward contract (TNR to TISD hedge rate T82.34) - | 1,352.05 - - 1,352.05

{ii) In the Company's hedge relationship, source of hedge ineffectiveness are eredit risk of the counterpariy or of the
Company and changes in timing of hedge transaction.

(iii) The impact of the hedging instruments on the balance sheet is, as follows:

Total Notional Fair Vallmfﬂarr}rltlg C]mnges in value uf!]edgzlng
Particulars s Amount of derivative instrument recognised in
= i (liability) / Asset QCI (Income) / Expense
March 31, 2024
Foreign cxchange forward contracts - - 7.60
March 31, 2023 _
Foreign exchange forward contracts 1,352.05 7.60 (7.60)
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43. Ratio analysis

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Ratio MNumeralor Denominator 31-Mar- | 31-Mar- Yo Reason for
_ 24 23 Change variance
Current Liabilitics e B
Current Batio Current Asscts {excluding Buyer's (.49 0.87 (43.25%) ol ’
: credit) =
Shareholder’s Equity
(inchiding Optionally
Dat?i— Liquity Total Deht = ll'.‘urn:nlt and | Converlible 322 119 0.81%
Ratio non-current Borrowings | Debentures and
Project Loan [rom
holding company)
Earnings for debl service [Etbt Srvice = Yokl
Finance cost
Diebt Service —Net profit ﬂﬁﬂ: i {cxcluding non-cash
Caerse Deferred tax + Finance PR R 1.10 .10 0.26%
RRITRE cosl + Depreciation and P s
PR Tnstalments as per
Mortseg Debl arrangements
Average
Shareholder's Equity
e T {including Optionally
Retum on Bquity | 0, poiec aftertaxes | Convertible (7.44%) | (11.62%) | 35.93% | Deerease in losses
ratio (“RoE")
Dechentures and Loan
{rom holding
company) .
Inventory g ) i .
Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory Mol Applicable
P ‘L - . % I 3 ¥
I'rade Receiv _ah[c ’l:utal Re venue [rom Avel age Trade 987 18.04 (45.56%) nerease in average
Turnover Ratio Contract with customers | Reccivable reccivable
Trade Payable Average Trade o Increase in average
; 3.60 7.96 54.81%
Tumowver Ratio Tolakother exprnses Payables ( %) payables
Working capital =
Current assels — :
t Capi Lot i Decrease in current
_IEHI{‘HF m}: . (!,ﬁﬂtl Ret,veyticlﬁcimmtm Current liabilities (1.86) (14.41) | (73.22%) ast;;:
urnover Ratio “ontract with custo feclding Bhvess
B eredit)
Net Profit ratio Net Profit after taxes Total Revenue from | 5 5700y | (27.16%) | (42.65%) | Decrease in losses
operalions
R R . Capatal Emﬁiu;ﬂ:d =
i Larnings before interest, ;
Retintiv s Caplal finance cost and laxes Tatgihie Net_Wonh T7.22% 5.80% 24.64%
Employed (LBIT" + Dcht + Deferred
tax liability
Roturn on Vinance Income Investment Mot Applicable
Investment

Mote 1: Debt-Equity ratio as delined in financing documents is 2.80 (March 31, 2023: 2.92),

Debt

Project Loan {Current and Mon-current Borrowings)

Equity — Paid up Share Capital, Optionally Convertible Debentures and Unsecured loan from Helding Company for project.
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44, Audit Trail

The Ministry of Carporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies,
which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a
{eature of recording audit trail of cach and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account
along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edil log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevant ransactions recorded in the accounting
software. However, the audit trail {edit log) feature is not cnabled at database level to log any direct data changes, Further,
there is no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with where such featurc 15 cnabled.

45. Other statutory information

{i} The Company does nol have any Benami property, where any proceeding has heen initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami properly.

{ii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yct to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory
period,

{iii) The Company has not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Virtual Currency during the linancial year.

(iv) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ics), including loreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indircetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocver by or on
behall of the company (Utimate Beneficiaries) or
{ii) provide any guarantce, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneliciaries

{v) The Company has nol received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company {Ullimate Beneficiarics) or

(ii) {ii) provide any guarantee, seeurily or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

{vi) The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013 rcad with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 (as amended).

(vii) The Company does not have any (ransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessmenls under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey

or any other relevant provisions of the Income-lax Act, 1961,

{viii) The Company has not been declared as willlul defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
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(ix) The Company has not been sanctioned a working capital limit by banks or financial institutions, hence the Company is
not required to file any quarterly return or statement with such banks or financial institutions.
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